

Assessment Policy



Table of Contents

Definition of Terms3-4
Purpose5
Scope5
Policy5
TTII Assessment-Code of Practice6
Rights and Responsibilities of Students6-7
Examinations-Management of Assessments7
Types of Assessments7-9
Assessment Procedures
Communication of Assessments Requirements10
Plagiarism11-12
Feedback to students12
Examination Procedures
Appeals13
Moderation13-14
Commitment of Management14
References15
Appendices16-20

Definition of Terms

Assessment:	Assessment is the systematic collection and analysis of information to improve student learning. Assessment is an evaluative process through which a judgment is made about the extent to which a student has demonstrated graduate capabilities objectives and has achieved the required learning outcomes.
Feedback:	Feedback is information provided regarding aspects of students' learning and performance, including corrective information. Feedback is part of formative assessment – it can be used to clarify and correct conceptual and skills-based errors or underdeveloped ideas. Feedback can help learners to generate higher level responses or work output. This may take the form of group feedback, individual feedback, peer feedback, self-comparison, verbal and written feedback, discussions (in class) as well as more formal feedback related to assignment marks and grades.
Examination	This term refers to a formal final supervised test, quiz or essay paper in an official examination period in which the results contribute to summative assessment.
Progress Tests	Progress Tests are used during a semester or course to determine student mastery or understanding of aspects of the course objectives. They are assessment activities, which are carried out under examination-like arrangements, but occur during normal semester time, not the official examination period. These tests perform a useful formative learning function for students and teachers as well as a summative function.
Oral Assessment	An oral assessment generally includes observing the extent to which a student is able to set up a structured presentation on the spot. An examiner poses questions to the student in spoken form and the student has to answer the question in such a way as to demonstrate sufficient knowledge of the subject to pass the exam.
Digital	A digital assessment is the presentation of evidence, for judging student
Assessment Weighted	achievement, managed through the medium of computer technology Refers to assessment of discrete elements of an assessment task in which
Grading	grades or scores are recorded against each required element of work or criteria and then tallied to arrive at a final grade. There are usually differential weightings for the various elements which are dependent on their relative importance in relation to the unit learning objectives.
Practicals	Assignments in the MICIA Modules 3 & 4, as well as PLAP Modules 3 & 4, are used to assess students practical skill sets for the technical areas. These assessments are hands-on and are designed to test the students' ability to apply areas of investigation and adjusting.
Learning Objectives	Learning objectives are the teaching intentions espoused in a curriculum document regarding the planned learning experiences set out to help students achieve. These underpin and direct the unit design and teaching activities. Their effectiveness is what is evaluated by students and peers through standard student feedback on teaching measures and peer review processes.

Learning Outcomes	A learning outcome is the specification of what a student should learn as the result of a period of specified and supported study. (Lee Harvey 2004–16)
Graduate	These are the capabilities that students must demonstrate in order to pass a
Capabilities	unit or graduate from a program of study. These are what must be assessed in each unit or module.
Moderation	(A) The role of assessment design moderation is to ensure that (1) tasks are aligned to the Course and Unit Objectives; (2) stated learning outcomes satisfy professional community standards.
	(B) Moderation of the grading process and outcomes is intended to ensure (1) consistency across multiple markers and (2) that the grades attributed to student products and performances reflect the appropriate standards for the Unit level and satisfy institutional, national and international standards of the professional community.

Purpose

To communicate the practises that underpin the TTII's approach to assessment of student learning and feedback. These practises guide the procedures to be used in the conduct and management of assessment and feedback in all coursework from courses that are components of our programmes.

Scope

TTII managers of learning and teaching, all teaching staff, Assessment staff, support staff, and all students enrolled in our programmes.

Policy

The TTII assessment policy and procedures is derived from industry practices and aligned with international standards that ensure that student and teacher efforts play a pivotal role in focusing on intended learning outcomes to produce grades and reports that are valid, reliable and an accurate representation of each student's capabilities, in relation to clearly articulated learning objectives. This policy and procedures are consistent, ethical, honest, fair, equitable and thus provide an opportunity for success for all students.

This policy shall also embody high quality, timely feedback as an essential element that must have value for students in improving their learning performance and developing their capacity to self-assess. It incorporates expectations and standards of national and international stakeholders, where appropriate, by focusing on quality assurance procedures and processes as part of a quality management system, which ensures quality of student learning achievements.

These learning achievements require involvement of the TTII management (and all other stakeholders) to achieve quality enhancement and continuous improvement as evidenced through:

- Transparent, consistent, efficient and effective procedures:
- Provision of opportunities to enhance "assessment literacy" of all stakeholders, at all levels of responsibility, so that they are well informed of their rights and responsibilities and have reasonable expectations regarding assessment process outcomes;
- Accountability and responsibility among staff and students are guided by ethical assessment procedures;
- Moderation processes that have a dual focus, namely:
 - (i) assessment design
 - (ii) consistency of grading outputs;
- Review cycles that inform TTII's Quality Assurance and quality enhancement processes.

TTII Assessment – Code of Practice

Purpose

There are many stakeholders involved in the conduct and outcomes of assessment including students, teaching staff, industry practitioners, the Regulators and the community. Assessment is a high stakes activity in the educational process, which is a critical aspect of the TTII operation, as the institution is accountable for the credentials it bestows on its graduates.

The TTII, through the Director of Education, requires that:

- 1. Teachers and students will ensure that they are familiar with the implications of the assessment policy and related documents.
- 2. The Communications/Education Officer will establish mechanisms and procedures to enable the implementation of the Assessment Policy.
- 3. The Institute establishes sound connections with related professional accrediting bodies and employer groups to maintain a clear shared understanding of the standards achieved in graduates' credentials received from the TTII.
- 4. Students will comply with the systems, rules and expectations of programme delivery in all matters to do with assessment and performances.
- 5. Evaluate own performance as an assessor against the principles, values and practices outlined in this policy by utilising our internal quality assurance processes. Seek external expert moderation in order to obtain feedback on assessment results of graduate grades for consistency of marking standards.
- 6. Students to utilise the mechanisms for appeal if the need arises.

Rights and Responsibilities of Students

Students are entrusted with the responsibility to:

- 1. Be aware that the major objective of assessment is to aid learning achievements.
- 2. Be informed of the rules and requirements for progression in TTII programs, ensuring that they are fully aware of the advice, implications of discontinuation or withdrawal from a course.
- 3. Be aware of, and abide by, the assessment policy including the consequences for acts of dishonesty that include cheating, collusion and fraud.
- 4. Be aware of the means for seeking assistance in the department and institution.
- 5. Behave ethically and responsibly in their conduct of assessment tasks and avoid any action that would unfairly disadvantage or advantage another student.
- 6. Use assessment to engage in critical self-evaluation in terms of their progress towards the learning outcomes.
- 7. Submit work on time, ensuring that it is their own except when shared ownership is part of the task.
- 8. Notify staff as soon as possible if difficulties arise with timing, availability of resources or other requirements of the task.
- 9. Notify staff as soon as possible if difficulties arise in terms of substantial absences and submit an application for Special Consideration with the appropriate medical and/or other certificates.
- 10. Be aware of mechanisms for appeal.

Examinations

Management of assessment

TTII will take reasonable steps to protect students' personal information against loss, unauthorised access, use, modification or disclosure, and misuse. This includes assessment processes, submission of assessment tasks and providing results and feedback to students.

Types of Assessments

Diagnostic assessment

The goal of a diagnostic assessment is to determine the achievements of candidates at the entry stage of a course or programme to determine whether their qualifications and abilities at least meet the minimum requirements to be accepted by the TTII. This forms part of the TTII Quality Assurance Procedures and Processes.

Diagnostic (or qualifying) assessments include:

- Phone interviews
- Face to face interviews
- Background checks based on qualifying evidence submitted.

Formative (or on-going) assessment

The goal of formative assessment is to *monitor student learning* to provide ongoing feedback that can be used by instructors to improve their teaching and by students to improve their learning. More specifically, formative assessments:

- help students identify their strengths and weaknesses and target areas that need work
- help the institute recognize where students are struggling and address problems immediately or in a timely manner and include,
- participation in class discussions
- Informal question and answer feedback sessions.

Summative (or final) assessment

The goal of summative assessment is to *evaluate student learning* at the end of an instructional unit by comparing it against some standard or benchmark.

Summative assessments include:

- a progress test
- a final exam
- a project paper or assignment

Secondary Assessments

The goal of secondary assessments is to cater for situations that are out of the control of students and Institution, as well as, those who failed or were unable to complete the primary assessment. Secondary assessments will test the same areas of skill and knowledge that the original assessment was intended to test. It is consistent with the assessment criteria stated in the course outline and scheduled after the primary assessment or examination period.

Secondary assessments may take the form of:

- supplementary assessment or examination,
- deferred assessment or examination,
- special consideration
- Resits

Conditions for writing Programme Supplementals, Resits and Progress tests:

- Students failing to write Final exams due to illness will be allowed to write the Supplemental at no cost, on the condition that a medical for the period is submitted.
- Students failing to write progress tests must submit a medical, sick leave, or valid reason for absence within 24hrs of the test. Failure to do so will mean forfeiture of the examination. Upon receipt of the aforementioned the TTII will advise if a student will be granted a supplemental exam. This applies to Final exams (Supplementals and Resit) as well.
- Students receiving between 50% to 57% as their overall average (total score at the end of module) would be allowed to write the Resit Examination at a cost of TT\$500.00. There is a maximum of two Resit Examinations.

The rules and regulations for the TTII State Licensing written examinations can be found in Appendix A of this Assessment Policy.

Oral Assessment

The oral assessment is provisional and thus depends on a student's ability to qualify for the examination, as per the TTII Examination Setting Policy, under "margin of disputes"; or the student examination handbook. To qualify for an oral examination a student must score at least 58 (overall weighted) marks.

The oral assessment generally includes observing the extent to which the student is able to set up a structured presentation on the spot. While there is a fairly strong emphasis on reproduction of knowledge, the dialogue provides ample opportunity for breaking through to higher levels of understanding such as overview, making connections, insight, analysis, evaluation and personal recommendations.

Other types of Assessments

Digital Assessments

Digital assessments is the presentation of evidence, for judging student achievement, managed through the medium of computer technology. Digital assessments at the TTII can either be external digital assessments, or internal digital assessments.

External digital assessments consist of online examinations, or tests administered through the use of technology. These assessments are usually done remotely, for example, at an exam candidate's home, or work office. This can be in an externally digital proctored (or supervised) environment, or non-proctored environment.

Internal digital assessments consist of computer based examination (CBE) in a supervised, or proctored environment. For example, at an online examination centre, or Prometric centre with physical staff invigilating the CBEs.

The rules and regulations for the TTII State Licensing online examinations (digital assessments) can be found in Appendix B of this Assessment Policy.

Condition for students writing Deferred Examinations:

• Situations that are out of control of the Institution. For e.g. Closure of office or examination hall due to emergency, or at the discretion of the Director of Education.

Condition for Special Consideration:

• A death in the family. In this case, a death certificate for the deceased must be presented to the TTII no more than two weeks after the date of the examination for consideration of a deferral or supplemental. The candidate will also be required to provide proof of relation to the deceased.

Repeating a Module:

- Students receiving an overall average below 50% will be required to repeat a Module in the next cycle.
- Repeating the module means that students will have to redo <u>all</u> Coursework Assignments, Progress Tests and the Final Examination.

Assessment Procedures

Requirements for coursework programs

- 1. When planning teaching, learning and assessment activities, the TTII assessment staff will take into consideration the total time that students will need to allocate to all major and related tasks required to engage with the course content and successfully achieve the desired course outcomes. This includes attendance at all face to face delivery components, completion of assessment tasks, self-directed independent course related reading and research. The total contact hours per course can be found in each of the programme's prospectus, or brochures.
- 2. For the purpose of this policy, assessment tasks that contribute to the final grade in the course are divided as follows:
 - a. **Continuous assessment tasks**: TTII courses may include a number of these tasks during the study period. Collectively these are known as 'a set of continuous assessment tasks' This may include a project paper or other assignments.
 - b. **An assessment point** occurs when students are asked to submit work at a specified point of time in the course, including end-of-course examinations where used.
 - c. Additional assessment requirements (assessment hurdles) are conditions for passing a course or assessment task other than the overall mark. They include, but are not limited to, achieving a specified outcome in a particular aspect of the course (via oral exams for example), or specified attendance requirements. Note: this is solely at the discretion of the TTII.
- 3. Unless a specific variation is approved the Director of Education, the following requirements apply:
 - a. There will be no more than six assessment points in any course.
 - b. At least 40% of the total assessment for the course will occur before the final exam.
 - c. The assessment point value will be done using the weighted point system (for Diploma programmes).
 - d. All written assessment tasks should be submitted in hard copy. Soft copies can be submitted if requested by the lecturer.

Communication of assessment requirements to students

The programme prospectus explains the expectations of each assessment task, its relationship to the program graduate qualities, and the criteria and standards by which performance will be judged. However, see below additional conditions for assessments.

Assignment Guidelines

Individual and/or group assignments are usually done outside of the classroom and a submission date is assigned by the lecturer. These assignments constitute the practical aspect of a module or programme.

Late Submission of Assignments

Any assignment submitted past the deadline date, 10% of the total marks (100%) will be deducted per day. After three (3) days the assignment will not be accepted and the student will receive zero.

In cases of illness, a medical must be submitted and will be verified by TTII. Extensions may be granted at the discretion of the Institute.

These guidelines are on page 6 of TTII Examinations Handbook.

Plagiarism

In an instructional setting, plagiarism occurs when a writer deliberately uses someone else's language, ideas, or other original (not common-knowledge) material without acknowledging its source (WPA 2003) and must comply with the T & T Copyright Act no. 8 of 1997, chapter 82: 80 section 5 and 6. Plagiarism also comprises:

- Copying or editing any type of work from a co-worker/friend.
- Someone dictating words to you.
- Cutting and pasting from the internet without citing the source of the information
- Using a quote and not identifying the author or source.
- Using another individual's work to complete your assignment.

For examples of referencing see the student examination handbook page 6-7. The referencing system adapted by the TTII is the Harvard University style of referencing. Supplementary information on this will be distributed to students by the Communication\Education officer (Programme Coordinator) as needed.

Disciplinary Actions

The act of plagiarism is a serious offense and not taken lightly by the TTII. If a student's work if found to be plagiarised, or a student or group of student is found to be cheating (for example, doing another student's assignment for them) the following actions will be taken:

Disciplinary Actions - Continued

Faculty - Student Conference:

When a module lecturer (or any member of the TTII Examination Unit) responsible for assessments has reason to believe that an action of a student, or students falls within plagiarism or cheating as a result of their investigation/s (e.g. using plagiarism checkers), the examination unit member is obliged to initiate a faculty-student conference. The lecturer may choose to handle the alleged instance of cheating and/or plagiarism in conference with the student. During the conference, the instructor shall present the student with the charge and the evidence which should occur no later than three weeks from the alleged incident or discovery of it.

If the conference finds that cheating and/or plagiarism has occurred, the Lecturer's Report of Cheating and/or Plagiarism must be sent to the Communication\Education Officer (Programme Coordinator). The Lecturer Report may include recommending the following sanctions:

a) Academic Sanctions

If the student admits to plagiarism and/or cheating, the lecturer shall impose an academic sanction. The instructor has the prerogative of lowering a grade, assigning a grade of "0" or "F" for the test/paper, assigning a "0" or "F" for the entire course, or recommending another penalty that seems appropriate. If the student maintains their innocence, then a second investigation shall be done by an external examiner or any other Examination Unit member appointed by the chair. If the results of the investigation are the same then the above sanctions apply at the discretion of the lecturer. If innocence is proven, the case will be dropped. No sanction can be imposed without filing the Lecturer's Report of Cheating and/or Plagiarism with the Programme Coordinator for approval.

b) Disciplinary Sanctions

In addition to academic sanctions, the Examination Unit Chair may also recommend students who admit to cheating and/or plagiarism be subject to additional disciplinary sanctions. Following due process, disciplinary action taken by the Examination Chair may include, but is not limited to, the following: blocking the possibility of substituting a grade earned later in the same course, a written reprimand, suspension, or expulsion. Recommendations for these disciplinary sanctions will be considered upon receipt of the Lecturer's Report of Cheating and/or Plagiarism filed with the Programme Coordinator.

Feedback to students

Feedback is one of the most important aspects of the learning process. It enables students to make timely and informed judgements about their performance. It forms part of the formative assessments that the TTII employs.

- 1. Feedback will be provided in a variety of ways, including:
 - a. model answers to questions
 - b. verbal comments to individuals and/or a class
 - c. In-class reviews of Assignments and Progress Tests
 - d. comments via email and/or online forums, to individuals and/or a class

Feedback to students-Continued

- e. comments on presentations and participation in class discussions
- f. preliminary discussion about an assessment task
- g. written feedback on drafts of an assessment task
- h. written comments on feedback forms
- 2. Feedback on assessment tasks for students will normally be provided within 10 working days, but no longer than 20 working days following the deadline for submission of the assessment task.
- 3. Feedback for summative assessment will be will include as a minimum:
 - a. an indication of the graduate qualities being assessed by the task
 - b. marks or grades, and/or
 - c. comments in response to key components of the task or a summary comment.
- 4. Where summative examinations are used in a course, the programme coordinator or course tutor will ensure that appropriate feedback is available to students, for example, change of dates for exams, weak area analysis etc.
- 5. Students seeking individual feedback about a summative examination must contact their Lecturer or Education Officer within 3 working days following the finalisation of results for that study period.

Examination Procedures

See Appendix A

Appeals

Appealing grade scores shall be done in accordance with the Examination Appeals Policy which is published on the TIII website. It can be found here:

https://www.ttii.org.tt/uploads/Examination%20Appeal%20Form.pdf

Governance of Disciplinary Action/s

Where a student is found to breach the Examination Rules/Regulations, the breach will be handled by the Examination Unit, or Director of Education.

In cases of non-resolution, the matter will then be referred to the TTII Council of Trustees.

Moderation of assessment

Moderation of assessment includes assessment design and approaches to marking, as well as processes associated with the review of judgments made about students' results or grades and feedback. Moderation incorporates valid and fair assessment tasks as well as valid and reliable judgments about the quality of students' work.

TTII moderation processes result in high quality assessment practices to ensure:

- a. The manner in which all assessment items in all courses are valid and fair ways of measuring student achievement of learning outcomes.
- b. Practices to ensure consistency in judgments made about student achievement within and across courses, including the use of:
 - (i) marking guides to promote shared understandings about expectations and performance in assessment
 - (ii) second marking where an external examiner assesses marked work.
 - (iii) there is an Examination Unit or Team to address disparity in grades
- c. The review of marks or grades awarded to students' work, including feedback (as a result of an appeal for final exams), and any subsequent actions are communicated to students.

Commitment of Management

The TTII Assessment Policy will be updated as needed in accordance with the TTII internal quality assurance procedures and processes and will be reviewed yearly as part of the TTII Quality Management System to maintain the professional standards of quality needed for effective delivery of TTII programmes.

Approved by

Edweena Newallo-Dottin

President-Council of Trustees

Date 18/9/2020

References

1)	WPACouncil.org, January 2003
	Sourced at:

http://wpacouncil.org/files/wpa-plagiarism-statement.pdf

2) Harvey, L., 2004-16 Analytical Quality Glossary

Sourced at:

http://www.qualityresearchinternational.com/glossary/learningoutcomes.htm

3) New Zealand Qualifications Authority, 2015, Digital Assessments

Sourced at:

https://www.nzqa.govt.nz/assets/About-us/Our-role/innovation/DAT-factsheet-May15.pdf

Appendix A

TTII WRITTEN EXAMINATIONS PROCEDURES (INSTRUCTIONS)

- 1. At this time, you should have on your desk pens and or pencils, your examination notice, the Examination Attendance Form and some form of Government Identification. The exam can be completed in pen or pencil.
- 2. Electronic devices such as cell phones, calculators, smart watches, tablets and the like are not permitted to be on a candidate's person during the examination. These items must be totally switched off and together with personal belongings (handbags, wallets, notes, and paper) not required for the examination must be placed in a storage area designated by the Presiding Officer.
- 3. Please note that the area in which these items are stored will be deemed to be part of the examination hall. Candidates are therefore strongly cautioned to ensure that their electronic devices are totally switched off while in the storage area, as they may be disqualified from further participation in the exam should any sound be heard from their devices.
- 4. On the Examination Attendance Form located on your desk, record the name of the exam, your candidate number, your name in BLOCK LETTERS, your national Identification Card, Drivers Permit or Passport number (#), today's date and your signature. Ensure your Candidate number (#) is correctly stated, as this is the only means of identifying you. Please keep your attendance form, picture ID and examination notice on your desk.
- 5. Students who do not produce a picture ID may be debarred from writing the exam.
- 6. When you receive your Examination Booklet, verify that the title of the exam is correct. You must adhere to the rules of conduct for this examination; they are printed on the front cover of your Examination Booklet. Read those rules now. **DO NOT MARK ON THE EXAMINATION BOOKLET**.
- 7. Use only the Answer Sheet provided by the Invigilators. Scrap paper is provided for your use. Separate work sheets may not be used. Please write the appropriate letter next to the corresponding number on your answer sheet.
- 8. **Return of Examination Booklet, Answer Sheet and Scrap paper:** Examination materials used and unused are the exclusive property of the Trinidad and Tobago Insurance Institute and may not be kept by candidates under any circumstances.
- 9. **Loss of Answer Sheet:** Should the completed examination answer sheet be lost or destroyed, the Institute will extend full fee credit but no credit for the examination can be awarded.
- 10. Examination results are final and any request for regrading or to view the examination answer sheet/question booklet will not be entertained.
- 11. Results for this examination will be sent to your head office/home address one (1) month from the exam date. Results will not be released over the phone.
- 12. **Disciplinary Matters:** The Presiding Officials are empowered to discontinue the examination of any candidate suspected of misconduct which includes but is not limited to:
 - Breeching any examination instructions
 - Being found in possession of electronic devices, notes or aids of any kind
 - Communicating in writing, verbally or by way of signs etc. to other candidates
 - Disturbing other candidates by reading aloud to oneself
 - Smoking in the examination room

A report of any such incidence may be sent to the Inspector of Financial Institutions (Central Bank).

- 13. This is a three (3) hour examination and candidates must adhere to the following:
 - Any candidate arriving to the examination room after the first thirty minutes will not be allowed to write the exam.
 - Candidates are not permitted to leave the examination room during the first sixty (60) minutes of the exam.

Appendix B

TTII ONLINE EXAMINATION RULES AND REGULATIONS

This document will cover the following areas:

- > The Exam Environment
- > The Computer Being Used for Exam
- Your Behaviour During Exam
- Additional Time or Special Allowances
- > Exam Violations
- Consequences of Exam Violations
- Exam Allowances
- > Exam Results
- Supporting links

THE EXAM ENVIRONMENT

- You must take the exam in the same room that you started the exam registration (on-screen) setup process, used to gain access to your online exam. That is, if you start the exam in one room, do not move to another.
- You may be asked to complete a webcam scan of your exam environment/ room by your proctor/invigilator on the day of the exam.
- If your camera video feed cannot be accessed by the proctor/invigilator on the day, (e.g. covered, angled away from you face, or has very poor visible quality); the TTII has the right to terminate your exam.
- No other person is allowed to enter the room while you are taking the proctored exam.
- The lighting in the room must be bright enough to be considered "daylight" quality. Overhead lighting is preferred. If overhead lighting is not available, the source of light must NOT be behind you, and must NOT be natural sunlight.
- You must sit at a clean and clear desk or table. (the exception being, your identification card, 1 blank sheet of scrap paper, pen or pencil and exam notice).
- The desk or walls around you must not have any writing on it.
- The room must be as quiet as possible. Sounds such as music/television/radio/voices in close proximity are not permitted.
- If power, or the internet connection goes at your location while the exam is in session, the exam will have to be retaken at another day to be advised.
- The following items must **not** be on your desk or be used during your proctored exam:
 - Books including notebooks and textbooks
 - Calculators
 - All smart technology including tablets, phones and watches etc.

Appendix B-continued

ONLINE EXAMINATION RULES AND REGULATIONS-CONTINUED

THE COMPUTER BEING USED FOR EXAM

- The computer you are using to take the exam must not have more than one display or monitor. For example, if you usually use a laptop with a monitor connected, disconnect your monitor and use only the laptop screen.
- It is highly recommended that you do NOT use a wireless connection to access the internet! Use a network cable and connect to your computer/laptop and then plug it into your home router, or office network. There will be a mandatory zoom meeting will all students to demonstrate this.
- Do NOT use your laptop on battery power to do your examination!
- You must close all other programs or windows on your testing computer before you begin the exam. This includes antivirus applications and emails.
- You must not use the following tools:
 - Programs such as Excel, Word, or PowerPoint
 - Communication programs such as Skype
 - Any website page, or navigate to any other window, other than the exam window.
 - Access pop up screens. E.g. Network IMs, external drives like one note, drop box, google drives etc.

YOUR BEHAVIOUR

- You must verify your identity using a photo ID that has your name and photo on the same side. The name and ID numbers must match the full name you used for your TTII registration.
- You must dress as though you were visiting an office environment (absolutely no sleeveless).
- You must not use headphones, ear buds, or any other type of listening equipment.
- You must not communicate with any other person by any means.
- You must not use a phone for any reason. (if there is an extenuating circumstance, like having to contact the TTII, then ask a family member/ co-worker to make, or take the call. Do NOT make, or take the phone call in the exam room. Ensure that you have support on the day of the exam. For technical support your relative, co-worker, or supervisor can also send an email to qualityassurance@ttii.org.tt.
- You must not leave the room during the exam for any reason.

ADDITIONAL TIME OR SPECIAL ALLOWANCES

If you have a disability and need additional time or specific accommodations to take the exam, consult your organization's Human Resource department and the TTII by a date to be announced, using the email: mail@ttii.org.tt. In the email, kindly state your name, contact number and disability. The TTII team must approve your request and make any adjustments before you proceed to attempt the exam.

Appendix B-continued

ONLINE EXAMINATION RULES AND REGULATIONS-CONTINUED

EXAM VIOLATIONS:

- Possession of a pencil case.
- Use of calculators. (This includes on-screen calculators)
- Possession or sight of a cell phone.
- Candidate suspected of misconduct. (for example, not following on screen instructions of the exam, a cell phone goes off in your exam room, or moving your entire body out of the view of the camera/exam screen)
- Talking, writing to, or communication in any way with anyone including house/office occupants during the examination.
- Smoking or consumption of alcohol in the examination room.
- Not showing your scrap paper to the invigilator before and after examination. (i.e. both sides of the scrap paper)
- Blocking your camera, or very poor visual access to your exam room due to poor camera video quality, or angled camera. Note: Ensure camera is as straight as possible at all times, unless it is asked to moved or shifted by the proctor/invigilator for room scanning.

CONSEQUENCES OF EXAM VIOLATIONS

• If you violate the State Licensing online exam rules a full report of actions taken will be sent to the Inspector of Financial Institutions (Central Bank). Any candidate affected by this policy can lodge an appeal to the TTII Education Sub-Committee after the payment of \$300.00.

EXAM ALLOWANCES

- One single sheet of paper to be used as scrap
- Exam Notice
- Identification card
- Pen or pencil
- A clear glass of water. Glass should not have any design on it. (no bottle water)

EXAM RESULTS

Results for this examination will be available on date to be announced. We are not permitted to release examination results over the phone.

Appendix B-continued

ONLINE EXAMINATION RULES AND REGULATIONS-CONTINUED

SUPPORTING LINKS

System Requirement/specification for Mettl Assessment Platform

• https://support.mettl.com/support/solutions/articles/114713-system-requirement-for-mettl-assessment-platform

System Compatibility Link:

https://tests.mettl.com/system-check?i=1syolgupds

System Check – For Screen Sharing, Mic and Camera

https://tests.mettl.com/system-check?i=1syolgupds

Candidate experience for proctored assessments (screen shots)

https://support.mettl.com/support/solutions/articles/4000091271-candidate-experience-for-proctored-assessments-

Candidate experience for proctored assessments (video)

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KivpvHm26C8